COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Between

Infinity Systems Engineering LLC, InDyne, Inc., Integrity Communications Solutions, Inc., and Rome Research Corporation

and



International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers I.B.E.W LOCAL UNION 543

at the

10th SPACE OPERATIONS SQUADRON (10 SOPS) CENTERS

POINT MUGU, CALIFORNIA
PROSPECT HARBOR, MAINE
SCHRIEVER SFB, COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO
TERRITORY OF GUAM

EFFECTIVE

OCTOBER 1, 2023 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - UNION RECOGNITION	4
ARTICLE 2 - UNION SECURITY	4
ARTICLE 3 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	6
ARTICLE 4 - OFFICIAL NOTICE REQUIRED BY AGREEMENT	6
ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	6
ARTICLE 6 - SUBCONTRACTING	7
ARTICLE 7 - NOTICE OF RESIGNATION	7
ARTICLE 8 - SECURITY RESPONSIBILITY	7
ARTICLE 9 - UNION REPRESENTATION	8
ARTICLE 10 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 11 - ARBITRATION	.11
ARTICLE 12 - SENIORITY	. 13
ARTICLE 13 - TEMPORARY TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT	. 16
ARTICLE 14 - GENERAL PAY	
ARTICLE 15 - HOURS OF WORK	
ARTICLE 16 - EQUALIZATION OF OVERTIME	
ARTICLE 17 - PAID TIME OFF	. 26
ARTICLE 18 - HOLIDAYS	. 28
ARTICLE 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE	. 29
ARTICLE 20 - JOB POSTING - TRAINING - TRAVEL	. 31
ARTICLE 21 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	. 32
ARTICLE 22 - INSURANCE, RETIREMENT, SAVINGS PLAN.	. 34
ARTICLE 23 - SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	. 37
ARTICLE 24 - SUCCESSORSHIP	. 37
ARTICLE 25 - JOB CERTIFICATION	., 37
ARTICLE 26 - PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE	. 38
ARTICLE 27 - TERM OF AGREEMENT	. 40
APPENDIX A	. 41
SIGNATURE PAGE	43

AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made by and between Infinity Systems Engineering LLC (Prime Contractor), InDyne, Inc., Integrity Communications Solutions, Inc., and Rome Research Corporation (Sub-Contractors of Infinity) (hereinafter referred to as the Company) and the I.B.E.W., AFL-CIO, Local Union No. 543 (hereinafter referred to as the Union).

Duration

This Agreement and the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and be binding as defined in Article 27 of this Agreement.

WITNESSETH:

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - UNION RECOGNITION

1.1 Recognition

The Company hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative of the employees in the bargaining unit defined in Section 1.2 for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to wages, benefits, hours of employment, and other conditions of employment. It is expressly understood that this act of recognition is not intended to imply, nor is any third party to infer, any rights or obligations which would attach to either of the parties hereto arising from such act except as specifically provided in this Article.

1.2 Bargaining Unit

The Company bargaining unit consists of all hourly rated operations, logistics, order clerks, maintenance, administrative travel clerks, and support employees employed by the Company at the 10 SOPS facilities located at

- Point Mugu, California,
- Schriever SFB Colorado Springs, Colorado,
- Prospect Harbor, Maine, and
- Finegayan, Guam,

established under the Navy Contract N0017819D7817/N0024421F3022 and any addendums to this contract, but excluding office clerical, guards, supervisors, managerial and all other employees as defined in the National Labor Relations Act, as amended.

1.3 Distribution of Agreement

The Company agrees to furnish a copy of the CBA to its bargaining unit employees upon request.

1.4 Applicability

All language contained in this CBA is applicable to all bargaining unit locations outlined in Section 1.2 unless specifically noted in the CBA by referencing the specific location.

ARTICLE 2 - UNION SECURITY

2.1 Union Shop

All employees presently covered by this Agreement and all employees hired or reinstated during the term of this Agreement shall be, or become, members of this Union as a condition of employment within thirty-one (31) days of the signing of this Agreement or the date of hire, whichever is the later, to the extent permitted by applicable law(s).

In the event that any employee fails to acquire his/her membership in accordance with the provisions of this Section, the Union shall notify the Company in writing. Such written notice shall constitute a request to the Company to discharge said individual employee within forty-eight (48) hours (Saturdays, Sundays, days off and Holidays excluded). Such discharge would be for failure to maintain membership in the Union, as defined in the National Labor Relations Act, as amended.

2.2 Dues Deduction and Check-off

The Companies, upon written request from a member of the bargaining unit on an agreed form, shall deduct from the first pay of each month the Union dues and initiation fees as specified by the Union and will remit the same to the Union by the end of the month in which the deduction is made. The union members pay the full monthly dues for any shifts worked in a calendar month.

- (a) After receipt of the Authorization for Check-off of dues form, of which the Union will send a copy to the Company, the Union membership dues for a calendar month shall be deducted from the first pay received by the employee in the succeeding months in which the employee has sufficient net earnings to cover the Union membership dues. In the case of employees returning to work after layoff or leaves of absence, who previously have properly executed authorization from the check-off of dues forms, deduction is made for membership dues provided herein.
- (b) In cases where a deduction is made which duplicates a payment already made to the Union by an employee, or where a deduction is not in conformity with the provisions of the International Union Constitution and By-Laws, refunds to the employee will be made by the Union with notification to the Company.
- (c) Deductions for any calendar month shall be remitted to the designated Financial Officer of the Union, no later than the last day of the month in which the deduction is made. The Company shall furnish the designated Officer of the Union with a list of those for whom deductions have been made and the amounts of such deductions monthly.

2.3 IBEW-COPE Community on Political Education

The Company agrees to provide for voluntary employee payroll deductions to the IBEW-COPE fund when such employee is within the scope of this bargaining unit as covered by this Agreement and such employee properly executes an authorization on a form as agreed to by the parties. Union members may request this form from the Business Manager. This voluntary amount is in addition to the monthly union membership dues.

2.4 Indemnification

In consideration of the Company's agreement to the Union Shop and the check-off of the Union dues, the Union hereby agrees to indemnify and save the Company harmless from any liability, cost or expense arising out of the entering into or enforcement of such provisions.

ARTICLE 3 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

There shall be no strike, sympathy strike, work stoppage, slow down, sit down, refusal to work, boycott, picketing, or any other form of strike or curtailment of work by the Union or its representatives or members during the term of this Agreement.

In consideration of the foregoing, the Company agrees not to cause or permit a lockout to occur during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 - OFFICIAL NOTICE REQUIRED BY AGREEMENT

In all cases where "Official Notices" are required by this Agreement such notices shall be considered as given when sent by e-mail (with read receipt/acknowledgement) or certified mail, return receipt requested, and addressed as follows:

The Company:

Infinity Engineering, LLC., Inc. Attention: Brad Michelson 10855 Hidden Pool Heights, Suite 300 Colrado Springs, CO. 80908 (719) 402-0265

The Union:

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local Union No. 543 Attention: Business Manager 16519 Victor Street, Suite 304 Victorville, California 92395 (760) 245-8147

ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as expressly and specifically limited by this Agreement, the Management of the Company has the sole authority over the workforce, including, but not limited to the services performed, the location of the workforce, the processes and materials to be purchased, the schedules and hours of work, the rights to hire, assign work, promote, demote, upgrade, downgrade, layoff, recall and transfer employees, to establish rules of conduct, to reassign, discharge or discipline for just cause, and to maintain efficiency and capability of employees are the sole and exclusive rights and responsibilities of the Company; subject only to such regulations and restrictions governing the exercise of these rights as are expressly provided in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 - SUBCONTRACTING

It is understood that as far as practical, the Company will use its own employees in the conduct of its business. However, it is also understood that in the conduct of its business, the Company may have the need or requirement to subcontract the performance of some aspects of its operations not covered in this Agreement. The Company may enter into such contracts as long as it is not coincident with or will result in the laying off bargaining unit employees or a reduction of the bargaining unit. It is understood that prior to entering into such contracts, the representatives of the Company and the Union will meet for the purpose of discussing the feasibility of having the work performed by members of the bargaining unit or to establish new classifications within the bargaining unit.

During the term of this Agreement the Company agrees that it will not subcontract work for the purposes of evading its obligations under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 - NOTICE OF RESIGNATION

Employees must give at least fifteen (15) calendar days' notice of resignation and work the last day of notification to be eligible for rehire with the Company.

ARTICLE 8 - SECURITY RESPONSIBILITY

8.1 Security Clearance

It is understood that if a security clearance is required by an agency of the United States Government in order to perform work in the job classifications covered by this Agreement, such security clearance shall be a condition of continued employment with the Company. Such employees shall be subject to investigation for security clearance under regulations prescribed by the Department of Defense or any other authorized and appropriate agency of the United States Government. A denial, non-approved, or withdrawal of such clearance by such governmental agency shall be just cause for discharge or suspension, provided, however, that if the employee diligently pursues an appeal to the appropriate agency of the Government for revocation of such denial or withdrawal and, if upon review by such agency, clearance is granted or reinstated, the employee shall be reinstated in accordance with his/her seniority.

8.2 Security Clearance Liability

It is understood that there shall be no liability, financial or otherwise, on the part of the Company for any discharge or suspension growing out of a denial, non-approval or withdrawal of a security clearance. However, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the individual from pursuing any legal remedy he/she may have against any person or organization outside the Company by virtue of his/her suspension or discharge under this clause.

8.3 Security Clearance Denial

Discharge or suspension because of denial, non-approval, or withdrawal of a security clearance by the appropriate governmental agency shall not be subject to the grievance and/or arbitration procedure.

ARTICLE 9 - UNION REPRESENTATION

9.1 Business Representative

The Business Manager of the Union or his/her Representative shall be allowed access to any shop or job at any reasonable time where union members are employed under the terms of this Agreement upon proper notification to a representative of Management designated by the Company provided that permission is granted by the Government. It is understood that the Business Manager may be limited to certain areas on all Military bases covered by this Agreement due to stringent security clearances that he has not been authorized to enter.

9.2 Stewards

Stewards will be appointed by the Union at each site. All Stewards shall be subject to the same rules and regulations affecting all other employees covered by this Agreement. The Union is responsible for notifying the Office of the Company in writing of the identity of all Stewards so appointed. The Company recognizes that adequate and proper Union Representation is essential to proper administration of the terms of this Agreement. As such, the Steward shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time to conduct Union business during working hours provided that the Union Business does not interfere with the daily work schedule. Reasonable amount of time shall be defined by the Program Manager or his designee with due consideration to program work requirements and the nature of the Union business.

9.3 Employee Request for a Steward

The Company shall not deny an employee's request that a Union representative be present at a meeting which the employee reasonably believes may result in disciplinary action against him/her.

9.4 Seniority List

A list of employees by job classification, rate of pay, and seniority date will be supplied to the Union upon request.

ARTICLE 10 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

10.1 Grievance

All grievances and arbitrations shall be conducted with the Prime Contractor. If a grievance or dispute should arise between the Company and the Union or between the Company and one of its own employees or a group of its employees with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, or other conditions of employment, such grievance or dispute shall be taken up only in accordance with the procedure outlined herein. Any employee wishing to present a grievance may do so personally to his or her supervisor or may request the Union Representative to act in his/her behalf. If the matter cannot be resolved with the supervisor during this informal meeting, it shall be filed for processing according to the following procedure.

10.2 Step One

The Grievance shall be reduced to writing on International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers GRIEVANCE FORM "Year", setting forth the following:

- (a) A statement of the grievance and the facts upon which it is based.
- (b) A statement or the remedy or corrective action requested of the Company.
- (c) The Article and section of the Agreement claimed to have been violated.

If an employee personally presents a grievance to the Company, the Union shall be notified and provided with a copy of the grievance and all relevant documentation provided to the grievant and may be present during all grievance proceedings. Such written grievance shall be presented to the Company and the Program Manager, within ten (10) calendar days after the employee was aware of the acts or omission of the Company which are the basis of the grievance. The Company shall answer the grievance in writing within seven (7) calendar days following receipt of the grievance.

10.3 Step Two

If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step One of this procedure, the grievant may request a meeting via e-mail to the Company on the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers GRIEVANCE FORM "Year", within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the Company's answer on Step One, above.

The Company, Program Manager, and the appropriate Supervisor involved will meet with the Steward and the Union Business Manager or Business Representative, within ten (10) calendar days following receipt of the appeal to Step Two. A written response to the grievance will be given by the Company to the Business Manager and the Steward within ten (10) calendar days after the Step Two meeting.

10.4 Step Three

If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step Two of the procedure, the grievance may be appealed in writing to the Company within five (5) calendar days after receipt of the answer in Step Two, above. The written appeal shall include the item within the grievance that is not satisfactorily resolved with the reason(s) why it has not been satisfactorily resolved. The Program Manager or his/her designated representative, and a representative of the Company will meet with the Union Business Manager or Business Representative and the Steward within five (5) calendar days following the receipt of the appeal to Step Three. A written response to the grievance will be given by the Company to the Union Business Manager and to the Steward within ten (10) calendar days after the Step Three meeting.

In the event the Union is dissatisfied with the Company's final disposition, the grievance may be appealed to Arbitration in accordance with Article 11 of this Agreement.

10.5 Witnesses

By mutual agreement of the parties, witnesses may appear at meetings provided in Steps Two and Three of the Grievance procedure.

10.6 General Provisions

- (a) In the event of failure by the Union to appeal any grievance within the time limits provided in this Article, the case shall be considered settled on the basis of the answer or disposition so made, and the Company will have no responsibility to further consider the grievance.
- (b) In no event shall a decision or award upon a grievance be made effective retroactively for any period prior to the date the grievance was filed, except in respect to a complaint or grievance relating to a payroll check, in which case the Company shall immediately adjust a grievant paycheck within two working days, or as soon as possible and in accordance with State and Federal laws, from the discovery of the error.
- (c) Periods within which any of the acts required in this Article are to be performed may be extended by written agreement between the Company and the Union Business Manager or his/her designated representative. Reasonable requests for extensions shall be considered. In computing the time within which said acts are required to be performed, scheduled off-duty days shall be excluded.
- (d) The Steward will be permitted to take time off from work, without loss of pay, to discuss grievances as defined in this Article with employee(s) concerned and supervisor(s) involved and to meet with the Company representatives in accordance with responsibilities as outlined in this grievance procedure with no mission interruption.
- (e) Copies of grievance answers shall be sent to the Steward and the Union Business Manager. Such requirement will not delay the grievance procedure.

- (f) The parties agree to act promptly and make every effort to settle a grievance at the lowest possible step. By mutual agreement, the second and third steps may be waived when the grievance involves a termination or suspension and the Union may proceed to initiate Arbitration proceedings.
- (g) Grievances regarding discharges or disciplinary suspensions must be filed within ten (10) calendar days from the date of discharge or the commencement date of the suspension.

ARTICLE 11 - ARBITRATION

11.1 Arbitration Procedure

All Arbitrations are to be conducted with the Prime Contractor. The Arbitration Procedure hereinafter provided shall extend only to those issues, which are herein defined as arbitrable, it must:

- (1) Have been properly and timely processed through the Grievance Procedure.
- (2) Involve the interpretation or application of a specified provision or provisions of this Agreement.
- (3) Not rest on any alleged understanding, practice, or other matter outside the scope of this Agreement.
- (4) Not require the arbitrator, in order to rule in favor of the party requesting arbitration, to exceed the scope of his/her jurisdiction under this Agreement.

11.2 Arbitrability

Unless specified otherwise in this Collective Bargaining Agreement, all matters not resolved in the grievance process outlined in this Agreement are subject to arbitration.

11.3 Notice

Any grievance falling under the scope of this Contract which is not settled in Step Three of the Grievance Procedure (Article 10, Section 10.4), herein may be submitted to an impartial arbitrator in accordance with the terms of these provisions. Notice of intent to appeal any such grievance to the arbitrator shall be filed in writing with the other party within fifteen (15) working days after the final decision has been given by the Company in writing; otherwise, such grievance shall be considered settled.

Representatives of the Union and representatives of the Company will select an arbitrator within thirty (30) days, unless such time is extended by mutual agreement. This process of selection shall be initiated by the Union by requesting the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a panel of seven (7) names to the parties. All such arbitrators must be members of the National Academy of Arbitrators and/or the American Arbitration Association. The parties shall alternately strike out one (1) name and the last remaining name shall be the Arbitrator for the hearing. The party to strike first shall be the Union and then on subsequent arbitrations requested, the party to strike first shall be alternated between the Union and the Company.

The rules of the American Arbitration Association concerning the conduct of proceedings shall thereby be adopted by the parties. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, each arbitration proceeding shall deal with not more than one (1) issue.

11.4 Arbitrator's Power

The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify any of the terms of this Agreement or any other Agreement made supplementary hereto, it being the intent of the parties that the express and specific provisions of this Agreement shall govern the entire relationship of the parties and shall be the sole source of any and all rights or claims which either party may assert against the other.

11.5 Decision of Arbitrator

The decision of the arbitrator upon the issues so submitted to arbitration shall be final and binding upon the parties to this Agreement.

11.6 Arbitration Expense

The cost of the initial selection of the Arbitrator, compensation and expense of the Arbitrator, and the arbitration proceeding, shall be borne equally by the parties.

11.7 Evidence in Arbitration Hearing

The Company and the Union agree that neither of them shall introduce new evidence in the arbitration hearing without notifying the other party at least two (2) working days prior to the hearing.

11.8 Stenographic Transcript

A stenographic transcript of the arbitration hearing shall be made and the cost thereof shall be borne equally by both parties. The selection of the Stenographer shall be mutually agreed upon and shall be selected after dates are confirmed with the Arbitrator.

11.9 Suspension or Discharge Arbitrations

In cases involving disciplinary action, suspension or discharge, the Arbitrator shall within fifteen (15) calendar days of the receipt of the Stenographer's transcript, send their written decision to each of the parties. In cases involving suspension or termination, by mutual consent, the parties may submit post hearing written briefs. Otherwise, arguments shall be made orally. If both parties agree to submit post hearing briefs, both parties shall submit such briefs to the Arbitrator within fifteen (15) calendar days of the close of the hearing. Failure of either party to submit such briefs in the timeframe required shall result in the brief being dismissed and not considered by the Arbitrator.

11.10 Arbitrations

In cases not involving disciplinary action suspension or termination, the Arbitrator shall render a decision and shall within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt of the Stenographer's transcript, send their written award to each of the parties. Either party is free to submit post hearing briefs if they so desire. If either party elects to submit post hearing briefs, the party submitting must make it known during the arbitration hearing of their intent to do so. Either party electing to submit such briefs shall do so to the Arbitrator within fifteen (15) calendar days of the close of the hearing. Failure of either party to submit such briefs in the timeframe required or failure to notify the other party of their intent to submit briefs shall result in the brief being dismissed and not considered by the Arbitrator.

ARTICLE 12 - SENIORITY

12.1 Definitions

(a) Company Seniority

Company seniority is defined as the length of an employee's unbroken service with the Company since the date of employment or reemployment, whichever is later. Company seniority shall apply for the purposes of determining PTO allowance credit eligibility.

(b) Bargaining Unit Seniority

Bargaining Unit seniority is defined as the length of a current employee's unbroken assignment on the Point Mugu Naval Installation, Prospect Harbor Maine Naval Installation, Finegayan, Guam Installation, and Schriever SFB Colorado Springs, Colorado, and the successor contractors on the above military installations.

Bargaining Unit seniority shall apply for purposes of layoff, bumping, shift selection, and recalls as provided in this Agreement. All positions require qualified candidates as determined by the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager.

12.2 Probationary Period

New employees shall be on probationary status for ninety (90) calendar days from date of hire. Upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period seniority shall be credited from the date of hire. Any employee with less than ninety (90) calendar days of service who, in the sole opinion of the Company is not performing satisfactorily, shall be subject to disciplinary action up to termination. It is understood between both parties that all Satellite Operator I probationary periods shall be nine (9) calendar months.

12.3 Bargaining Unit Promotions and Transfers

An employee who desires consideration for an available bargaining unit job opening, at any location, shall submit an application online as specified by the Company, stating his/her qualifications and the position for which he/she is applying. The Company will consider all applications on the basis of skill, ability, experience, performance, quality of work, conduct, and

adherence to work rules and attendance in making selections for filling available bargaining unit positions. When qualified employees exist and all such factors are equal as determined by the Program Manager, then bargaining unit seniority will be the governing factor.

All applications submitted to open bargaining unit positions will be reviewed and considered by the Company. Disputes arising between the parties as to the interpretation and/or application of this section shall be subject to the grievance procedure. The Company will then notify the Union and all current bargaining unit applicants within ten (10) calendar days of the resulting decision. Employees transferred or promoted into a new classification must work in the classification for a minimum of six (6) months (excluding progression within a classification) before they are eligible for promotion or transfer to a different classification. This 6-month minimum provision may be waived by mutual agreement of the Company and the Union.

An employee who has seniority in a classification within the bargaining unit, and who is subsequently transferred to a non-bargaining unit position within the Company, shall be deemed to have retained seniority rights as of the date of transfer or promotion in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement for a period of two (2) years from the date of transfer or promotion, minus any time in a non-bargaining unit position. If, in the opinion of the Company, it becomes necessary or advisable to return him/her to a position within the Bargaining Unit, all seniority rights accrued before such transfer or promotion will be restored within this two (2) year period. In no case shall he/she displace any member of the Unit.

12.4 Layoff

- (a) When it becomes necessary to reduce the work force the least senior employee(s) in the classification(s) will be laid off in their respective geographical work location. Where there are two employees in the same classification who have the same bargaining unit seniority date, the employee with the last four of their social security number who is the lowest shall be considered most senior. The Company reserves the right to exercise its Management Rights as outlined in Article 5.
- (b) An employee who is laid off under the provisions of sub-section (a) above may displace an employee with the least Bargaining Unit seniority in any equal or lower rated occupational classification provided the employee who is laid off has greater Bargaining Unit seniority than the employee being displaced and is qualified to perform the work. Employees in one classification attempting to displace into another classification must have the requisite certification.
- (c) The exercise of seniority rights in this section is dependent upon the individual employee's ability to perform the available work.

12.5 Recalls/Return from Downgrade

When the work force is increased following a layoff, employees will be recalled to any full time/non-temporary occupational classification provided that they have the qualifications and

ability to perform the available work. This shall be done in accordance with the employee's official bargaining unit seniority as defined in Article 12.1 section (b).

This provision shall also apply where the employee is working in a downgraded position as a result of the displacement procedure set forth in Section 12.4 (b).

12.6 Breaking of Seniority

The following shall cause a break in seniority as defined in Section 12.1:

- (a) Resignation
- (b) Discharge or Termination
- (c) Layoff for a period of equal to the employee's seniority or for one (1) year, whichever is less. To retain seniority, however, an employee must register with a written and signed letter of intent with the Company by certified mail, email, or hand deliver in person to Human Resources at least once each one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days following his/her layoff. If not registered, his/her seniority shall terminate.
- (d) Failure to notify the Company within ten (10) working days after a recall notice has been sent by certified return receipt mail, or failure to report to work within five (5) working days of such notice.
- (e) If the employee engages in other gainful employment without Company approval while on approved leave of absence.
- (f) Failure to report to work within three (3) consecutive working days following expiration of an approved leave of absence.
- (g) Settlement is reached with employee for total disability.
- (h) The employee retires.
- (i) If the employee is absent from work, for three (3) consecutive days without proper notification or approval from the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager.
- (j) If the employee fails to supply the Company with justification for the need of a Medical Leave of Absence within five (5) working days after the last day worked.
- (k) The employee is unable to return by the end of the reinstatement period as referenced in Article 19.4 (Medical Leave of Absence).

12.7 Seniority on Recall

An employee who has been laid off less than 1 year, and who has been recalled and accepted for active full time/non-temporary employment with the Company, will receive full credit for the Bargaining Unit seniority during the period of layoff, however benefits will not accrue during the period of layoff. An employee recalled after a three (3) month absence will require recertification of Satellite Operators and maintenance technicians (see Article 19.6).

12.8 Seniority in Assignment of Shifts

Bargaining Unit Seniority in each classification shall be the determining factor in the assignment of employees to shifts and days off. All employees may request a shift and days off change no later than October 1 of each year. The new shift and days off schedule will be implemented on January 1 of the following year.

ARTICLE 13 - TEMPORARY TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT

13.1 Temporary Transfers

In order to meet varied work requirements of the operation, it may be necessary to temporarily transfer employees from one classification to another related classification due to absenteeism, to fill vacancies, or to meet increased work requirements. To the extent practicable, such assignment should be within the general area of knowledge and skill of the employee's current classification. It is understood, however, that no employee shall be temporarily transferred for periods, which when accumulated, exceed thirty (30) days in any ninety (90) day period. When such transfers are made, employees shall be paid their regular rate of pay or the rate of the new classification, whichever is higher, for all hours worked. When such temporary transfers are made for five (5) or more working days, the employee's personnel file will be documented with a copy of such documentation to the union.

13.2 Temporary Assignments (not to exceed five (5) consecutive working days)

Employees may be temporarily assigned to perform duties to another related classification and may be assigned duties that are supplemental or incidental to the primary duties of another classification. When such assignments are made, employees shall be paid their regular rate of pay or the rate of the new classification, whichever is higher, for all hours worked.

It is understood that the Company shall not use temporary transfers or assignments on a continuous and recurring basis to avoid filling a bona fide permanent vacancy in a classification.

13.3 Temporary Location Reassignment

In order to meet operational requirements, it may be necessary to temporarily assign employees to another geographical location. These assignments shall be offered by seniority to qualified employees on a rotational basis. In the event of insufficient volunteers, the company will assign the work to the least senior Operations Technician Specialist employee. The employee will be compensated at their current rate of pay or the pay that is higher in the

geographical location assigned, whichever is higher. These assignments may not be more than two (2) weeks consecutively and not more than ninety (90) days in a calendar year unless mutually agreed to in advance by the employee and the company.

ARTICLE 14 - GENERAL PAY

14.1 Classifications and Wages

A schedule of classifications and wages for the term of this Agreement is attached hereto as Appendix "A" and by this reference made a part hereof. It is expressly understood that the sole purpose of this schedule is to fix the rates of pay for employees in the various classifications. Appendix "A" shall have no other effect on the rights of the parties to this Agreement. The Company agrees that employees shall be properly classified in accordance with positions for which they are qualified and the work they are performing.

- (a) To be entitled to a classification, an employee must regularly and independently perform work operations which are an integral part of and representative of his/her normal and typical assignment and the requirements of the classification.
- (b) An employee will not be required to consistently do work in more than one classification at a time. However, it is recognized that an employee may perform some of the work of higher rated classifications in order to qualify for advancement and may perform some of the work of lower rated classifications when required. The normal duties of an employee may include some of the work of comparable classifications and may include assistance to other employees in other classifications. No employee shall have the right to refuse to perform assigned work.

14.2 New Classification

When work operations involving new or substantially changed requirements result in the modification of classifications after the effective date of this Agreement the Company shall notify the Union of its intentions in writing and all such new or modifications to the existing job classifications shall be subject to the bargaining process. If such actions fail to meet the satisfaction of the Union on the rate(s) of pay, then the matter may be made the subject of a grievance and appealed to arbitration as provided for in Article 10 and Article 11 of this Agreement. In no case shall any current employee's rate of pay be reduced as a result of such modification.

14.3 Bereavement Pay

An employee shall be excused from work and suffer no loss of pay for up to three (3) regular working days to arrange for or attend the funeral of a member of the immediate family. If the employee has to travel in excess of 350 miles from their home location for funeral services or arrangements the employee may be granted two (2) additional working days off with pay. The employee shall furnish the Company satisfactory evidence of such death and funeral location if the employee needs to travel and requires two additional days.

Members of the immediate family shall be defined as: spouse, mother, father, sister, brother, son, daughter, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, stepchild, and stepparent. Management may pay for a greater amount of time if in Management's opinion, a greater amount of time is necessary.

14.4 Jury Duty

Any employee who has passed his/her Probationary Period as defined in Article 12.2 and is called to and reports for jury duty or is subpoenaed to appear in court as a witness shall be paid by the Company for each day partially or wholly spent in performing jury duty. The Company's obligation to pay an employee for the performance of jury duty is limited to a maximum of fifteen (15) days in any calendar year. In order to receive payment, an employee must give the Company prior notice that he/she has been summoned for jury duty and must furnish satisfactory evidence that jury duty was performed on the days for which he/she claims such payment. Jury duty pay will be adjusted for shift personnel to ensure that personnel are not paid for more than 40 hours in a week. Jury duty pay will be paid at the employee's regular rate of pay and will not exceed 40 hours in a week. The provisions of this Article are not applicable to an employee who, without being summoned, volunteers for jury duty. However, when subpoenaed by a party other than the Company, the employee will not be compensated if the employee, the Company, or the Union is a party in the case, or if the employee has any direct interest or financial interest in the case.

14.5 Military Pay (see Article 19.2)

After completion of their Probationary Period as defined in Article 12.2, any employee who is a member of a military reserve component and has a mandatory training obligation shall be granted a maximum of ten (10) working days leave each calendar year when ordered to short tours of active duty for such purpose. If an employee is deployed in support of mandatory training obligations, an additional ten (10) working days leave shall be granted, up to a maximum of twenty (20) working days leave each calendar year. In such event, the Company will pay to such employee the difference, if any, between his/her military pay and the base rate of pay, exclusive of any premiums and differentials, which he/she would have received if he/she continued within the service of the Company for such period, not to exceed thirty (30) days in a calendar year. Should a bargaining unit employee be placed on active duty as a result of military orders, the employee shall be granted a leave of absence in accordance with the applicable company policy and applicable laws upon providing proof of military orders.

14.6 Separation Pay

Any employee with more than six (6) months of continuous service shall be entitled to severance pay when he/she is involuntarily laid off and is not re-employed in the same location by a successor contractor or civil service employment within (30) thirty calendar days of the effective layoff date. The Company shall pay separation pay in accordance with the following continuous service time:

(a) Six (6) months to one (1) year of completed employment = Two (2) weeks of base pay.

- (b) Over one (1) year to three (3) years of completed employment = Three (3) weeks of base pay.
- (c) Over three (3) years of completed employment = A week per every year of service but no more than a maximum of eight (8) weeks of base pay.

ARTICLE 15 - HOURS OF WORK

- **15.1 Shifts** (all times listed are local times) The following are examples of shift times but alternate shift schedules may be required.
 - (a) Point Mugu: The normal shift will consist of eight and one-half (8 ½) consecutive hours inclusive of a lunch period of one-half (1/2) hour. Shift workers will be expected to remain on site for lunch periods, due to mission requirements.
 - (1) **Point Mugu**: Shift numbers and starting times are stated below solely for the purpose of categorizing shifts:

Mid-Shift 1: Starts at or about 11:00 PM and ends at or about 7:30 AM

Day- Shift 2: Starts at or about 7:00 AM and ends at or about 3:30 PM.

Eve- Shift 3: Starts at or about 3:00 PM and ends at or about 11:30 PM

- (2) **Point Mugu**: A workweek is a period of seven consecutive workdays starting at the beginning of Sunday's #1 shift and ending at the completion of the following Saturday's #3 shift.
- (b) Colorado Springs: The normal shift will consist of eight and one-half (8 ½) consecutive hours inclusive of a lunch period of one-half (1/2) hour. Shift workers will be expected to remain on site for lunch periods, due to mission requirements.
 - (1) **Colorado Springs**: Shift numbers and starting times are stated below solely for the purpose of categorizing shifts:

Mid-Shift 1: Starts at or about 11:30 PM and ends at or about 8:00 AM

Day-Shift 2: Starts at or about 7:30 AM and ends at or about 4:00 PM

Eve-Shift 3: Starts at or about 3:30 PM and ends at or about 12:00 AM

Alternative Schedule: when the employees normal shift start times have to be changed from the above to accommodate the customer's requirements, the shift start times will be as follows:

Day-Shift 2: Starts at or about 7:30 AM and ends at or about 4:00 PM Afternoon Shift 3: Starts at or about 11:00 AM and ends at or about 7:30 PM

NOTE: It is understood that shift premium is paid after 3:30 on the Afternoon Shift.

- (2) **Colorado Springs**: A workweek is a period of five consecutive workdays starting at the beginning on Sunday's #1 shift and ending at the completion of the following Saturday's #3 shift.
- (c) Prospect Harbor: The normal shift will consist of eight (8) consecutive hours inclusive of a paid working lunch period of twenty (20) minutes. Employees will be expected to remain on site for lunch periods, due to mission requirements.
 - (1) **Prospect Harbor:** Shift numbers and starting times are stated below solely for the purpose of categorizing shifts. Employees are expected to remain onsite for shift turnover.

Mid - Shift 1: Starts at or about 10:15 PM and ends at or about 6:15 AM

Day - Shift 2: Starts at or about 6:15 AM and ends at or about 2:15 PM.

Eve - Shift 3: Starts at or about 2:15 PM and ends at or about 10:15 PM.

- (2) **Prospect Harbor**: A workweek is a period of seven consecutive workdays starting at the beginning of Sunday's #1 shift and ending at the completion of the following Saturday's #3 shift.
- (d) Guam: The normal shift will consist of eight and one-half hours (8 ½) consecutive hours inclusive of a lunch period of one-half (1/2) hour.
 - (1) Guam: Day Shift 1: Starts at 6:00 AM and ends at 2:30 PM.
 - (2) **Guam**: A workweek is a period of seven consecutive workdays starting at the beginning on Sunday's #1 shift and ending at the completion of the following Saturday's #3 shift.
- (e) Work Day is defined as a continuous 24-hour period beginning at 00:00:1 (calendar day).
- (f) A weekly work schedule is defined as those hours an employee is scheduled to work and works during the course of a workweek as determined by the Program Manager (PM) or Assistant Program Manager (APM).

15.2 Example Schedules

(a) Regular 5-day Work Schedule

<u>Point Mugu:</u> A regular 5-day Work Schedule is a schedule that includes five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour daily work schedules. The work schedule will be determined by PM.

<u>Colorado Springs</u>: A regular 5-day Work Schedule is a schedule that includes five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour daily work schedules Monday through Friday inclusive. The work schedule will be determined by APM.

<u>Prospect Harbor</u>: A regular 5-day Work Schedule is a schedule that includes five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour daily work schedules. The work schedule will be determined by APM.

<u>Guam:</u> A regular 5-day Work Schedule is a schedule that includes five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour daily work schedules. The work schedule will be determined by APM.

(b) Continuous Operations Schedule

Point Mugu: A Continuous Operations Schedule is a schedule that includes four (4) weekly work schedules composed of rotating shifts, designed to provide coverage on a twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week basis. Scheduled off-duty days in such week shall be consecutive, except by mutual agreement of the parties to this Agreement.

At least (2) two or more shift rotation and weekly work schedules shall be drafted by the Program Manager or his designee and offered to the Union employees that will be decided upon by majority vote. The schedule that was approved by the employees would be implemented as soon as administratively possible. The schedule process will be reviewed annually in October of each year by the Program Manager and the Union employees to determine if the employee desire to remain on the preestablished schedule or if they would like to vote again on different schedule.

<u>Prospect Harbor</u>: If required, a Continuous Operations Schedule is a schedule that includes a permanent shift assignment designed to provide coverage on a twenty-four (24) hour seven, (7) days a week basis. The Company will make every attempt to schedule consecutive off-duty days in such week.

(c) Posting of Weekly Work Schedules

The company shall post the weekly work schedule which shall include the weekly work schedules for the following four weeks no later than thirty days in advance before the start of the schedule posted.

(d) Company Initiated Work Schedule Change

In order to fulfill mission requirements and to provide coverage for employees on vacation and medical leave, the Company may have to change an employee's shift to ensure 24/7 coverage. The Employees shall be given twenty-four (24) hours advance notice of any change in a weekly work schedule which shall be for good and sufficient reason, except in emergency situations. It is understood, however, that the employer will not use this twenty-four (24) hour notice requirements as a means of avoiding

premium payments as outlined in Section 15.5 (a) of this Article by pre-scheduling different starting and quitting times within an employee's weekly work schedule.

The Company will endeavor to maintain a minimum of thirty (30) days between the changes in shift assignments. The employee shall then be returned to his/her original schedule. Employees may return to their regular schedule, as approved by the Program manager if the requirement ends prior to the end of the thirty (30) day minimum.

Notice of a change in the weekly work schedule shall be considered given by direct communication with the affected employee.

For purposes of overtime payments, the parties agree that the first scheduled day off will be considered the 6th day and second scheduled day off as the 7th. It is understood that this agreement is to maintain the number of weekly work schedule options available and not to exclude the availability of Saturday-Sunday or other scheduled off day options allowable under this section.

15.3 Trading Days Off

An employee may be permitted to trade scheduled days off with another employee in the same work group for any one week. Requests for such trade must be agreed to by the affected employees and submitted via e-mail or text to the PM or APM for approval at least (24) twenty-four hours in advance. The employees will assume full responsibility for reporting to work as agreed and foregoing any overtime premiums that would normally be paid for the sixth and seventh day at the Program Manager's or APM's discretion.

15.4 Trading of Assigned Shifts

Subject to the approval of the PM or his designated representative an employee in the same classification may trade assigned shifts with another employee in the same classification for any one week. Requests for such trade must be agreed to by the affected employees and submitted, in writing, to the PM or APM for approval at least seven (7) days in advance. The employees will assume full responsibility for reporting to work as agreed and foregoing any overtime premiums that would normally be paid for the sixth and seventh day at the PM's or APM's discretion.

15.5 Overtime and Premium Payments

(a) Whenever the Company is unable to satisfy the weekly work schedule notice requirements as stipulated in Section 15.2 (c) of this Article, then the employee, whose weekly work schedule starting and/or quitting time has changed, shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked outside of his/her scheduled weekly starting or quitting time for the remainder of the employee's weekly work

schedule. For the purposes of this article, the hours paid as PTO and Holiday, will be considered as hours worked toward the (40) forty-hour work week.

(b) <u>Point Mugu:</u> Time and one-half (1-1/2) shall be paid for time worked over eight (8) hours per workday in accordance with State law. Double time shall be paid for all hours worked over twelve (12) hours in any continuous work period in accordance with State law. <u>Colorado Springs:</u> Time and one-half (1-1/2) shall be paid for time worked over twelve (12) hours per workday in accordance with State law.

(c) Applicable to all sites

- 1. Time and one-half (1-1/2) shall be paid for all hours worked over forty (40) hours per workweek.
- 2. Time and one-half (1-1/2) shall be paid for all hours on the sixth day in the work week or on the first scheduled off-duty day, whichever is applicable.
- 3. Double time shall be paid for all hours worked on the seventh day in the work week or on the second off-duty day, whichever is applicable.
- 4. Time and one-half (1-1/2) shall be paid for all hours worked on the applicable holidays recognized under this Agreement.
- 5. Wage payments at overtime or premium rates shall not be pyramided for the same hours worked, and hours for which compensation is paid at the overtime or premium rates under one provision hereof shall not be construed as hours worked for making payments under any other provision hereof.
 - **For example:** if overtime is recorded on a specific day of the week, it will not be added again at the end of the week if working over (40) forty hours.
- 6. Any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding it is the intent of the Company and Union that employees who are scheduled to work overtime shall be expected to work the overtime required provided, however, that if an employee has a justifiable reason, which is acceptable to the Company, for not working the scheduled overtime and the employee makes his/her reason known to his/her supervisor at the time the supervisor schedules the overtime work, the employee shall be excused from the overtime assignment and charged with a refusal under the provisions of Article 16 of this Agreement.
- 7. A workweek will not break a workday to prevent overtime except for those employees assigned to shift number one.
- 8. Should an employee be scheduled to work and works on a non-overtime day which begins earlier than twenty-four (24) hours from the starting time of the prior non-overtime work day, the employee shall receive time and one-half (1-1/2) for such

hours that precede the time which is twenty-four (24) hours from the starting time of the prior daily work schedule, providing he/she worked eight (8) hours in that twenty-four (24) hour period.

9. When employees are traveling on company business or for training and their travel schedule exceeds their regular work schedule, the maximum paid travel time in any day is eight (8) hours. The employees will be paid the applicable overtime rate.

15.6 Lunch Periods

Where meal periods without pay are granted, they will be granted approximately mid-way through an eight (8) hour work schedule and during overtime periods where the workday exceeds twelve (12) hours.

Employees who work in excess of eight (8) continuous hours will not be required to take a meal break during the overtime period.

15.7 Break Periods

All Sites: There shall be two (2) paid rest periods of fifteen (15) minutes each in duration, during each eight (8) hour workday. Such rest periods will be scheduled so that they fall during the first and second half of each work shift respectively.

15.8 Call-In/Report-In Pay

- (a) An employee called to work or permitted to report to work as scheduled, without having been given reasonable notice that there will be no work, shall be given at least two (2) hours work, or if less than two (2) hours work is assigned, shall be paid two (2) hours pay at the applicable rate, except that if work is unavailable, as a result of a strike or other causes reasonably beyond the control of the Company, such as fire, explosion, general disaster, failure of power lines or utilities, or acts of God, no pay need be made. If an employee is not required to work a full two (2) hours for the call-in period, but is required to work a full shift thereafter, those call-in hours paid but not worked shall be credited towards the remaining work hours in the employee's shift and all hours worked on the regular shift in excess of the call-in hours shall be paid at the employee's regular straight-time rate of pay. For example, if an employee were to be called in but was only required to work two hours prior to his or her normal start time, that employee will nevertheless be paid two (2) hours of call-in pay (at time and one-half (1-1/2)) and the remaining hours of his or her regular shift at the employee's straight-time rate of pay. (However, at the discretion of the company, that employee may be relieved from work two (2) hours early and sent home. Under those circumstances, the employee will only be paid two hours at the prescribed overtime call-in rate.)
- (b) When an employee is called at his/her home after or before his/her normally scheduled shift to assist a supervisor and/or to assist another bargaining unit member, at the

request of a supervisor, he/she shall be paid in (1) one-hour increments. It is agreed that the employee shall receive a minimum of (1) one-hour of pay under this provision.

(c) Off-Duty is defined as any point when the employee is not being paid, regardless of location. An extension of work prior to end of the scheduled work hours is not considered Call In / Report in Time.

15.9 Shift Premium

When overtime premium and shift premium are due concurrently, both will be paid and calculated on the employee's base rate. This is not considered pyramiding.

<u>All Sites:</u> Employees assigned or are required to work the Eve or midnight shift shall receive a shift premium of ten percent (10%) of their base pay for all hours worked. Employees who assigned or are required to work on Sundays shall receive a shift premium of twenty-five percent (25%) of their base pay for all hours worked.

15.10 Height Premium

Point Mugu, Prospect Harbor, and Guam: Employees working on unprotected towers, structures and antennas in excess of thirty (30) feet above the surrounding base area or when the use of a safety harness is required, shall receive premium pay of one and one-half (1-1/2) their applicable rate for such time as they are performing work. "Unprotected" refers to structures not normally intended for walking, climbing, or standing, or where stairways, ladders, or platforms are not equipped with protective railings or cages. Employees entitled to height premium will receive a minimum of one (1) hour per occasion. When overtime premium and height premium are due concurrently, both will be paid and calculated on the employee's base rate.

15.11 On Call Premium

All Sites: It is agreed that the on-call requirements shall be equally borne and rotated by all qualified employees in the classifications required by the Company. This schedule shall be posted at least four weeks in advance. Employees will receive a weekly premium of \$64.00 / week assigned to be on call, based upon a seven (7) day weekly assignment. If an employee is called in and performs work in excess of the two-hour minimum as defined in section 15.8 of this Agreement, the employee shall receive time and one-half (1-1/2) their normal rate of pay for all hours worked.

ARTICLE 16 - EQUALIZATION OF OVERTIME

Overtime will be equalized as far as practical among employees in a work area, classification, and job family. The Company shall make reasonable effort to equalize overtime within designated groups insofar as practical. It is understood, however, that the requirement for overtime equalizations shall not apply during critical, special, or emergency conditions beyond the control of Management.

In the event there are no volunteers to accept the overtime required or the company cannot reach the lowest overtime employee on the list, then the company will require the lowest accumulated overtime employee currently on shift to work overtime on the next succeeding shift only. An employee shall not normally be required to work consecutive sixteen (16) hour shifts.

ARTICLE 17 - PAID TIME OFF

17.1 Paid Time Off

A full-time employee with the Company shall be eligible for Paid Time Off (PTO) according to the following schedule and conditions. PTO is a time-off plan that combines vacation, sick and personal days in one flexible pool of time available to meet the personal needs of eligible employees, while balancing business needs. PTO can be used for any reason, including illness (personal and/or family), vacation, personal business, leisure activities, health related appointments (personal and/or family) as well as time off associated with the Family Medical Leave Act. Employees may go negative on their PTO balance as long as it does not exceed forty (40) hours, upon prior approval by the Program Manager (PM) and Company Human Resources Manager.

Beginning on October 1, 2023, employees will accrue PTO on a bi-weekly basis at the rate corresponding to the employee's years of service as shown below:

0 but less than 3 years of service	144 hours per year
3 but less than 6 years of service	184 hours per year
6 but less than 9 years of service	204 hours per year
9 + years of service	224 hours per year

All incumbent Union members will receive credit with respect to PTO accrual in accordance with Section 12.1 (a), seniority.

An employee who voluntarily terminates his/her employment or who is terminated from employment by the Company will be paid a lump sum for all unused PTO.

17.2 Day of Paid Time Off

A day's PTO pay will be computed by multiplying eight (8) times the employee's straight time hourly pay rate in effect at the time the PTO is taken.

17.3 PTO Scheduling

Employees entitled to PTO benefits may take such time during the year with Management approval and due consideration, provided this can be done without interfering with efficient operations. If there is any conflict between employees who are working in the same classification for same day PTO requests, senior employees will be given their preference.

Employees, in Company Seniority order, shall begin scheduling their PTO on October 1 of each year for the following January-December use year. Employee PTO selections for the following calendar use year shall be given to the Supervisor for approval prior to November 1 of the current year. After November 1 of each year, PTO requests will be approved by a first request basis.

It is understood, however, that nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent Management from scheduling partial or total shutdowns. Whenever such shutdowns are scheduled, Management will give the Union as much advance notice as is reasonably practicable but in no event less than thirty (30) calendar days.

17.4 Holidays During PTO Period

If one of the holidays recognized by this Agreement should fall within an employee's PTO period, he/she will receive pay for such holiday.

17.5 PTO Requests

PTO requests exceeding one (1) day must be made and approved by the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager no less than seven (7) calendar days prior to the event. Requests for PTO of one (1) day or less must be made and approved by the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the event. Where such notice is not possible, the employee must notify the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager of the intended absence, at least one (1) hour prior to the start of the scheduled shift. Employees who use more than three (3) consecutive unscheduled PTO days may be required to present a doctor's release to the Program Manager and Company HR Manager stating when they are eligible to return to work.

In the event that proper notice is not provided to the Program Manager or the Assistant Program Manager, the employee will be required to record the time as Leave Without Pay (LWOP). The prior notice may be waived with proof of emergency.

17.6 PTO Carryover and Payout

All Sites:

Employees will be allowed (128) one hundred twenty-eight hours of PTO carryover each October 1^{st.} All carryover PTO hours must be used by the end of the fiscal year unless otherwise approved by Management. If an employee's projected PTO balance will exceed the carryover limit at the end of the current fiscal year, they must submit a plan sixty (60) days prior to the fiscal year end which identifies their plan to reduce the PTO balance to the carryover limit. With appropriate justification, these requirements may be waived by the Program Manager.

Employees may request and be paid for any portion of accrued PTO at the end of the fiscal year. Accrued PTO above 128 hours at the end of the fiscal year will automatically be paid out.

17.7 Occupational Disability

The Company will not require the employee to use any of his/her accrued PTO and/or personal choice holiday for any absence due to a legitimate occupational injury. The employee may choose to take leave without pay.

17.8 PTO Abuse

The Union agrees the use of PTO will not be abused and the Union will assist the Company to ensure there is no abuse. If there is a pattern of abuse established by an employee, the Company and the Union shall meet to discuss a resolution to the employee's pattern of abuse.

17.9 Sick Pay

Three (3) days or twenty-four hours (24 hrs.) per calendar year of the PTO under section 17.1 shall be administered under the California Paid Sick Leave Law.

17.10 Payment Under Disability Insurance

In the event an employee becomes eligible to receive payments under a Disability Insurance Plan, he/she will be permitted to use such insurance prior to his/her using any PTO under this Article, provided such use is not in conflict with any State or Federal laws.

ARTICLE 18 - HOLIDAYS

18.1 Observed Holidays

Employees will be paid eight (8) hours pay at their regular hourly rate of pay for the Federally observed following holidays:

HOLIDAYS

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Day
Presidents Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Veterans Day
Christmas Day
Columbus Day
Juneteenth Day

The Company will provide eleven (11) holidays each year. The Company will publish the holiday schedule each October for the following year. For any future Federal Holidays that are newly established, those holidays shall become effective immediately and be incorporated into this Agreement through a Memorandum of Agreement between the parties.

18.2 Holiday Pay Eligibility

To be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must have worked his/her last regularly scheduled workday prior to the holiday and his/her next regularly scheduled working day following the holiday, unless he/she has been excused by the Company from working on such days. Employees on an approved formal leave of absence during an entire week in which a holiday falls shall not be eligible for holiday pay. If an employee is on PTO when the holiday is observed, the employee shall be paid Holiday pay on the Holiday.

18.3 Holiday Pay for Work on Holidays

An employee who works on one of the holidays designated above, shall receive one and a half $(1 \frac{1}{2})$ times his/her hourly rate of pay for all hours worked on that day, in addition to the holiday pay.

An employee who is properly scheduled to work on one of the designated holidays and fails to report for such work will not be entitled to receive holiday pay unless his/her absence was reasonably beyond his/her control.

18.4 Holiday Falls on Scheduled Day Off

In the event a holiday falls on one of the scheduled days off an employee shall be paid eight (8) hours of Holiday pay, or with Management approval, the employee may schedule an alternate paid day off.

ARTICLE 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

19.1 Personal Leave of Absence

Leaves of absence for personal reasons may be granted for good and sufficient reasons, consistent with the operating requirements of the Company.

- (a) Absence for a period of over five (5) days must be approved by the Company as a leave of absence. The leave of absence shall not be granted for periods of more than thirty (30) days unless extended by the Company in writing.
- (b) An approved copy of the formal leave of absence request will be furnished to the employee. A leave of absence may be extended upon the approval of the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager.
- (c) Seniority will accumulate during such leave, and upon return, the employee will be eligible for reinstatement in accordance with his/her seniority.
- (d) Available PTO must be used prior to the request of a leave of absence. Additional PTO will not be accrued while on leave.

(e) <u>All Sites</u>: Provisions of the State or Territory laws associated with each site will be administered under this section.

19.2 Military Leave of Absence (See Article 14.5)

Any regular employee of the Company who is inducted into the military service of the United States and who by reason of such service is entitled under the law to be regarded as a veteran shall, upon his/her discharge and his/her receipt of a certificate of satisfactory completion of his/her obligation, be afforded all rights, preferences and privileges accorded to such employees under the law.

Any regular employee of the Company who is an honorably discharged veteran of the Armed Forces may, in case of a future war involving the United States, enlist at any time and upon completion of his/her service be entitled to all benefits and privileges as provided in this Agreement and any future legislation passed by the United States Government.

Upon presentation of a copy of his/her military orders, an employee called for emergency duty shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for the period of such duty.

An employee who has completed the probationary period and who serves up to ten (10) working days on annual active duty, as a member of a State or Federal military reserve compound shall, upon presenting adequate proof on official Government letterhead, be paid the difference between the taxable military pay and the straight time rate the employee would have earned during his/her regularly scheduled workdays had the employee not been absent from work.

19.3 Union Leave of Absence: All Sites:

- (a) For the conduct of Union Business only and upon written request of the Union, any employee holding office in the Local Union may be granted a leave of absence for a period not to exceed one (1) year. Any such leave may be extended for an additional one (1) year by mutual agreement. Seniority will accumulate during such leave, and upon return, the employee will be eligible for reinstatement in accordance with his/her seniority.
- (b) Not more than one (1) employee may be granted a leave of absence upon request from the Union for the purpose of attending the International Convention of the Union as elected delegates of the Local Union. Seniority will accumulate during such leaves and employees will be eligible for reinstatement in accordance with their seniority.

19.4 Medical Leave of Absence

Medical Leave of Absence will be in accordance with company policy, individual State and Federal laws. Employee will notify the Program manager and the Company HR of their request

to take a medical leave of absence and complete the necessary paperwork. Medical leave may be extended in accordance with American Disabilities Act, ADA.

19.5 Failure to Return from Leave

Failure to report to work within three (3) working days following the expiration date of an authorized personal, medical, military, or union leave of absence will result in termination of employment unless the employee's leave of absence is extended by the Company. (See Article 12.6(f))

19.6 Recertification Requirement

Any absence in excess of three (3) months will require recertification of Satellite Operators and Satellite Grond Systems Technicians.

ARTICLE 20 - JOB POSTING - TRAINING - TRAVEL

20.1 Job Posting

Available full-time bargaining unit job openings shall be electronically posted for a period of three (3) working days, holidays excluded. The job opening will also be sent via e-mail to all bargaining unit members. Employees wishing to be considered for such openings shall submit an online application as specified by the company in Article 12.3. There shall, however, be no obligation to post bargaining unit jobs to which employees on layoff or downgrade have recall rights and have accepted such recall in accordance with Article 12, Sections 12.4 and 12.5 of this Agreement. All qualified bargaining unit applicants shall be interviewed. Those applicants not selected will be informed of the reasons why they were not selected. The Company shall provide timely notification to the Union of any changes to the job descriptions, responsibilities, and training requirements. The Company shall provide the Union with all of the job descriptions for all classifications listed in the CBA, but these job descriptions will be used for reference only and will not become part of the CBA.

20.2 Contract Required Training and Travel Pay

The Company will consider employee's requests when determining training need and scheduling attendance for training courses. When an employee is required to travel, expenses shall be paid by the Company in accordance with Department of Defense Joint Travel Regulations (JTR), Volume 2. An employee who voluntarily resigns within 1 year of course completion shall reimburse the Company for the cost of the training.

It is also understood that when employees are temporarily transferred by the Company to Point Mugu to perform their duties they shall receive the respective rates of pay in the CBA in effect at that installation but in no case shall their pay be lower than what is established in this CBA for Point Mugu California employees.

20.3 Classification Cross Training

Employees who desire to receive training in another classification covered by this Agreement may initiate their request via e-mail to the Program Manager. The Program Manager will consider all requests on a first come first serve basis. It is understood the Program Manager has the sole authority to provide the training requested or deny it based on mission requirements. All training is to be documented in the employee's personnel file for the purposes of promotion to another classification.

ARTICLE 21 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

21.1 Safety and Health

The Company shall continue to make reasonable provisions for the safety and health of its employees during the hours of their employment on Government operated facilities. The Company shall provide proper protective devices and other equipment necessary to protect the employees from injury and sickness.

An employee shall have the right to petition the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager, or in their absence, their designee whenever he/she reasonably believes a job assignment, the working environment or supplied equipment is unsafe or hazardous to his/her health. No employee shall be required to perform any unsafe work or work without the proper personal protective equipment.

21.2 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace

The International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers and the Company are committed to providing employees with a drug and alcohol-free workplace. It is our goal to protect the reputation of the Company, the Union, and the employees. Consistent with these goals, it is agreed that the parties will cooperate in order to comply with required Federal Regulations to achieve a drug-free workplace. In the event that random drug testing programs may be implemented the Company agrees to meet with the Union to discuss the provisions of such random program that shall include a last chance offer to accept rehabilitation services. If by reasonable Management suspicion of an employee who reports to work under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs, that employee may be requested to submit a urine sample to a medical officer who is certified to perform such collections in accordance with all applicable laws. Such sample shall be analyzed by a certified Laboratory to perform in accordance with all applicable laws. Any employee, who is requested to submit a sample under reasonable suspicion shall not have the right to refuse. Such refusal shall result in immediate termination. Prior to reasonable suspicion, if the employee discloses that a drug or alcohol problem exists, the company will assist in setting up counseling / rehabilitation services.

21.3 Change of Address

Employees shall notify the Company of their proper post office address. The Company shall be entitled to rely upon its record.

21.4 No Discrimination

Neither the Company nor the Union shall discriminate against an employee in accordance with Federal and State/Territory laws and protected classes.

21.5 Work by Excluded Personnel

Employees excluded from the Bargaining Unit as defined in Article 1 of this Agreement shall not perform work which is the work of employees in the Bargaining Unit except for the purpose of instructing employees or in clear and present emergencies when no qualified Bargaining Unit employees are available. In cases where all Bargaining Unit personnel are unavailable after having been offered overtime compensation, excluded personnel may perform the work. The Program Manager will notify the Union Business Manager of the situation. It is understood, however, that excluded personnel may utilize equipment for instruction, experimentation and modification for research and advanced Development work performed on equipment located at any of the 10 SOPS military installations listed in this Bargaining Agreement.

21.6 Outside Work Assignments

Assignments of work to be performed on open structures outside will not be made if weather conditions would make such work hazardous. Questionable instances of such assignments will be resolved on the basis of the decision of the Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager, or his/her representative and the circumstances involved. All employees shall have the right to challenge any work assignment that they deem hazardous.

21.7 Tools and Safety Shoe Allowance

Necessary tools, equipment and materials as determined by the Company will continue to be furnished to employees. No employee will be disciplined for not being able to complete an assigned task due to the unavailability at the facility of such necessary tools, equipment and materials. A safety shoe allowance of two-hundred and fifty dollars (\$250.00) shall be provided to those employees in classifications requiring their use every two years or earlier provided that the employee can demonstrate that their safety shoes are worn out or defective to his Program Manager or Assistant Program Manager.

21.8 N95 Respirator Mask – Applicable to Point Mugu Only

Should an event occur where the Company is required by the base or 10 SOPS Commanding Officer or the Contracting Officer to have its employees wear N95 Respirator masks while working on Military installations, the company will notify the employees and the union of such requirements being mandated. In compliance with OSHA regulations on N95 masks,

employees required to wear N95 masks must first successfully complete a medical evaluation and fit test.

If an employee has a medical condition that would prohibit the employee from successfully completing the required OSHA medical evaluation and fit test and provides documentation from a medical professional to the company, the company will address the situation and if available, provide reasonable accommodations for such labor classification that the employee is in. If accommodations are not available, the employee may either use any available PTO or take Leave Without Pay (LWOP) for a maximum of 60 calendar days from the start of the N95 mask mandate. If the N95 mask mandate exceeds 60 calendar days and the employee's medical condition is still medically prohibiting them from wearing an N95 mask, the employee's employment will be terminated.

The Company will bear all costs for any medical evaluations that may be required by the Local, State or Federal governing agency. These costs are to be inclusive of the following:

- 1.) Cost of the medical evaluation and fit test.
- 2.) Time to attend the medical evaluation and fit test will be paid per normal rate of pay of no more than 4 hours per visit.
- 3.) Reimbursement for round trip mileage to and from the medical evaluation facility per company travel policy.
- 4.) The Company shall ensure N95 masks and all replacements are provided to all employees required to wear them in accordance with the governing agency guidelines for use.

ARTICLE 22 - INSURANCE, RETIREMENT, SAVINGS PLAN

22.1 Insurance and 401K Savings Plan

The Company will provide a comprehensive insurance plan, 401K savings plan, dependent care reimbursement account, and all other supplemental insurance benefits that are offered to employees, the provisions of which are covered in separate documents. The Company will provide for automatic payroll deductions for those employees who participate. Insurance programs and plans shall not be subject to the grievance procedure established in this Agreement. The Company shall have the responsibility for the administration of the programs and plans offered by the Company.

22.2 Medical Benefits

A cash Health and Welfare (H&W) benefit shall be paid to the employee per the schedule below in the amount of 40 hours per week and maximum of 2080 hours per year.

Beginning 10/1/2023	\$6.25 / hour
Beginning 10/1/2024	\$6.50 / hour
Beginning 10/1/2025	\$6.75 / hour
Beginning 10/1/2026	\$7.50 / hour

All paid hours to include; hours worked, PTO, holidays, bereavement, jury duty, and military leave pay shall be considered as part of the 40 hours per week H & W benefit to be paid. Employees shall be offered a comprehensive medical, dental, prescription, and vision plans that an employee may tailor to their personal needs. It is the employee's option to select which Company supplemental insurance plans that they will participate in, if any, or elect to receive the cash payment equivalent of the hourly benefit or a portion thereof. If an employee declines the medical plan offered through the Company, the Company will require proof the employee has medical insurance coverage from another provider. It is understood the Company will continue to offer the supplemental insurances offered to all employees.

22.3 Life Insurance and Accidental Death & Dismemberment

The Company shall provide, at no cost to the employee, term life insurance in the amount of two (2) times their annual salary up to a maximum of five-hundred thousand (\$500,000) and Accidental Death & Dismemberment coverage in the amount of two (2) times their annual salary up to a maximum of one-hundred thousand (\$100,000). The employee may elect to purchase supplemental life coverage (up to 4X their annual salary or the maximum allowable by the plan) under this plan for himself/herself and/or to include his/her lawful dependents; the employee will be responsible for the additional premium costs for himself/herself and/or 100% of the total premium costs for his/her lawful dependents. All contributions will be collected through normal payroll deductions.

22.4 Company 401(k) Savings Plan with Match

The Company will provide a contributory 401(k) plan and automatic payroll deductions for those employees who choose to participate. The Company will match the employees' elective 401(k) contribution in accordance with the following schedule:

Beginning 10/1/2023	100% of the first 4.5% of the employee contribution
Beginning 10/1/2024	100% of the first 5.0% of the employee contribution

22.5 Education Assistance

Each Company agrees to establish and administer a training program for its employees covered by this Agreement. An amount equal to one (1%) percent of the annualized based pay for employees on the payroll within each bargaining unit as of the end of the US Government Fiscal Year.

The Company will inform the Union and all employees covered by this CBA of the total amount of Educational Funds that are available for each fiscal year no later than October 31.

Any residual fund remaining in the training budget will not carry over into the following year.

The Company will reimburse employees up to 100% of tuition expenses based on availability of funds and the number of applicants who apply for a given semester.

Only courses at an accredited college, university, approved trade/technical school or approved correspondence course may be used towards this benefit and are subject to the following restrictions:

- (a) Registration in the course must be during the period this Agreement is effective.
- (b) The employee must be actively employed on a full-time basis. Employees who, at time of registration, are on extended leave (30) days or longer), layoff, and/or probationary status are not eligible for educational assistance.
- (c) The employee must submit to the Company a degree plan and a "Request for Educational Assistance" at time of registration; and must receive a grade of "C" or better and credit towards a degree in Engineering, Physics, Chemistry, Mathematics, Business Administration or any other courses approved by the Company. Receiving a 'Pass' grade will satisfy this requirement for company-approved schools that utilize a PASS/FAIL grading system.
- (d) Employees who quit are discharged, or who take extended leaves (30 days or longer) for reasons other than sickness will not be eligible for reimbursement.
- (e) The Company obligation extends only up to 100% of tuition cost, registration fees, textbooks and lab fees. The employee must assume all other cost involved including, but not limited to, the cost of necessary entrance examination fees, student activity fees, and any other cost that may be necessary.
- (f) Courses will be approved and subjected to the above restrictions on a traditional biannual semester schedule by the Program Manager. Exceptions may be made for students enrolled in a non-traditional semester program but only on a case-by-case basis. All requests must be submitted to the Program Manager no later than two weeks prior to the start of a new semester using the proper company-approved form.
- (g) Funds will be evenly distributed, only after eligible grades have been verified by the company, across all students who applied during a given semester by the aforementioned deadline. The annual allotment of funds may be maximized during the first available semester which may diminish available funds going into the following semester until all funds have been depleted for the year.
- (h) Students who are receiving other forms of tuition assistance may only apply for the amount that is NOT covered by their primary benefit program and will be prioritized LAST when they are applying with other students who have no such benefit program at their disposal.

ARTICLE 23 - SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

23.1 Right of Modification by Mutual Agreement

This Agreement expresses the complete understanding of the parties on the subject of wages, hours of work, and the conditions of employment; however, this Agreement may be amended in writing by mutual agreement at any time. Any such amendment shall be reduced to written form, signed by the Business Manager of the Union and the authorized representative of the Company in the form of a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA).

23.2 Legality of Provisions

Should any provision or provisions of this Agreement, of any application thereof, become unlawful by virtue of any Federal or State law, or Executive Order of the President of the United States, pursuant to law, or final adjudication of any court of competent jurisdiction, the provision or application of a provision(s) of this Agreement shall be modified in compliance with the law, order or final adjudication, but in all other respects the provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for the life thereof. The Company agrees to discuss the implications of a change in law with the Union.

ARTICLE 24 - SUCCESSORSHIP

This Collective Bargaining Agreement shall be binding upon the Union and the Company, their successors and assigns, and shall continue in full force and effect in the event of the sale or other transfer of the business covered by this Agreement. As a condition of the sale or other transfer of the business covered by this Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Company shall require the transferee to assume and adopt the terms and conditions of this Collective Bargaining Agreement and to continue to recognize the Union as the sole bargaining agent for the employees covered by this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

ARTICLE 25 - JOB CERTIFICATION

25.1 Certification Program

The Company agrees to pay for all Government or Company required training and certifications.

Point Mugu, CA:

<u>Satellite Operators</u>: The Point Mugu Certification Program is based on the current job requirements of the Satellite Operators positions. Program modules can change with the addition of new equipment. The program will be completed in accordance with the customer's statement of work for consistent certification of Satellite Operators. This certification program is not optional and will commence by all Satellite Operators upon hire.

Certification is expected to be attained within one (1) year of date of hire. If the employee requires more than one year to attain certification and fails the qualification board two (2) times; a sixty-day (60) performance Improvement Plan (PIP) will be implemented. If the employee does not meet the terms of the PIP, then Management has grounds for termination.

<u>Satellite Ground Systems Technicians</u>: The Point Mugu Certification Program is based on current job requirements of the Satellite Ground Systems Technicians positions and can change with the addition of new equipment.

Colorado Springs, CO:

<u>Satellite Operators</u>: Must be certified under the Point Mugu Certification Program which is based on the current job requirements of the Satellite Operators positions. Program modules can change with the addition of new equipment. The program will be completed in accordance with the customer's statement of work for consistent certification of Satellite Operators. This certification program is not optional and will commence by all Satellite Operators upon hire.

Certification is expected to be attained within one (1) year of date of hire. If the employee requires more than one year to attain certification and fails the qualification board two (2) times; a sixty-day (60) performance Improvement Plan (PIP) will be implemented. If the employee does not meet the terms of the PIP, then Management has grounds for termination.

Prospect Harbor, ME:

<u>Satellite Ground Systems Technicians</u>: The Prospect Harbor Certification Program is based on current job requirement of the Satellite Ground Systems Technicians positions and can change with the addition of new equipment.

Guam:

<u>Satellite Ground Systems Technicians</u>: The Guam Certification Program is based on current job requirement of the Satellite Ground Systems Technicians positions and can change with the addition of new equipment.

25.2 Proficiency

Recurring training will be a requirement of the employee's position in order to maintain skill sets and proficiency.

ARTICLE 26 - PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE

26.1 Steps of Discipline

In most matters involving the disciplining of employees covered by this Agreement, the Company agrees to abide by the following progressive steps of discipline:

<u>First offense:</u> Documented verbal counseling.

Second offense: Written memorandum of counseling.

Third offense: Disciplinary suspension not to exceed five (5) days and may result in

termination.

However, the company reserves the right to discipline any employee up to and including termination for just cause (including all serious offenses) based on the severity of the incident in accordance with Company policy.

26.2 Verbal Counseling Retention

Documented verbal counseling's shall be removed from the employee's file after one (1) year provided the employee has not received a warning for an offense within one (1) year from date of issuance.

26.3 Written Memorandum Retention

Documented written memorandum counseling's shall be removed from the employee's file after two (2) years, provided the employee has not received a warning for an offense within two (2) years from the date of issuance.

26.4 Documented Evidence Disclosure

The Company shall provide the Union Business Manager with all documented evidence that caused the disciplinary action to be taken against an employee prior to any disciplinary meeting. In case of sensitive, confidential, or investigation reports containing witness statements related to allegations of illegal behavior, these reports shall only be provided to the Union Business Manager and the Company reserves the right to present only a memo that captures the summary of findings to the employee prior to any disciplinary meeting.

26.5 Satellite Operations Lead, Satellite Operator Specialists, and Satellite Operators Discipline Exemption

It is understood that no employee in the above listed classifications shall be disciplined for mistakes made while assigned two or more concurrent supports while on shift unless there is a pattern of negligence established or observed.

ARTICLE 27 - TERM OF AGREEMENT

27.1 Effective Date of Agreement

The effective date of this Agreement shall be October 1, 2023, for all purposes, and shall remain in full force and effect until 11:59 p.m. Pacific Time on September 30th, 2027.

27.2 Duration and Notice to Modify Agreement

This Agreement shall remain in full force and affect until 11:59 p.m. Pacific Time on September 30th, 2027 and shall thereafter be continued in full force and effect from year to year after September 30th, 2027 unless a notice of termination or desire to modify or change this Agreement is given in writing by certified mail by either party to the other party at least sixty (60) days before the expiration date of September 30th, 2027 or the anniversary of the effective date thereafter.

APPENDIX A

POINT MUGU, CALIFORNIA CLASSIFICATION & WAGE SCHEDULE

Labor Classification	1-Oct- 2023	1-Oct- 2024	1-Oct- 2025	1-Oct 2026
Logistics Support Technician	\$26.42	\$27.48	\$28.44	\$29.29
Facilities Support Technician	\$29.74	\$30.93	\$32.01	\$32.97
Satellite Operator I	\$38.79	\$40.34	\$41.75	\$43.00
Satellite Operator II	\$40.59	\$42.21	\$43.69	\$45.00
Satellite Ground Systems Technician I	\$38.53	\$40.07	\$41.47	\$42.71
Satellite Ground Systems Technician II	\$40.98	\$42.62	\$44.11	45.43
Satellite Operator Specialist	\$44.08	\$45.84	\$47.44	\$48.86
Satellite Ground Systems Lead	\$44.29	\$46.06	\$47.67	\$49.10
Satellite Operations Lead	\$47.34	\$49.23	\$50.95	\$52.48
Training Specialist Lead	\$56.38	\$58.64	\$60.69	\$62.51

COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO CLASSIFICATION & WAGE SCHEDULE

Labor Classification	1-Oct- 2023	1-Oct- 2024	1-Oct- 2025	1-Oct 2026
Satellite Operator I	\$34.10	\$35.46	\$36.70	\$37.80
Satellite Operator II	\$35.66	\$37.09	\$38.39	\$39.54
Satellite Operator Specialist	\$38.74	\$40.29	\$41.70	\$42.95
Satellite Operations Lead	\$44.88	\$46.68	\$48.31	\$49.76

PROSPECT HARBOR, MAINE CLASSIFICATION & WAGE SCHEDULE

Labor Classification	1-Oct- 2023	1-Oct- 2024	1-Oct- 2025	1-Oct 2026
Satellite Ground Systems Technician I	\$31.52	\$32.78	\$33.93	\$34.95
Satellite Ground Systems Technician II	\$33.64	\$34.99	\$36.21	\$37.30
Satellite Ground Systems Lead	\$36.68	\$38.15	\$39.49	\$40.67

APPENDIX A

GUAM CLASSIFICATION & WAGE SCHEDULE

Labor Classification	1-Oct- 2023	1-Oct- 2024	1-Oct- 2025	1-Oct 2026
Satellite Ground Systems Technician I	\$25.27	\$26.28	\$27.20	\$28.02
Satellite Ground Systems Technician II	\$27.60	\$28.70	\$29.70	\$30.59

Note: The above wages are minimum rates for all locations covered by this Agreement, and nothing precludes the Company from paying an employee at a higher wage rate provided the Business Manager is notified of the new wage.

<u>All Sites</u>: All Satellite Ground Systems Technician I and Satellite Operator I position employees will automatically be upgraded to the applicable Satellite Ground Systems Technician II and Satellite Operator II classification upon Military Board Certification. All Satellite Ground Systems Technician I and Satellite Operator I position employees who have not received their complete training and an opportunity to pass the Military Board Certification, shall receive \$1.00/ hour wage increase on their first year employment anniversary.

<u>Satellite Operator II Step Increase:</u> When an employee completes their third (3rd) year of employment in the Satellite Operator II classification; their hourly wage will be automatically increased by \$1.50 / hour.

<u>Satellite Operator II Promotion Increase:</u> When an employee completes their fifth (5th) year of employment in the Satellite Operator II classification; their classification and associated hourly pay will automatically be advanced to the Satellite Operator Specialist classification and wage schedule.

Nothing precludes the Company from promoting an employee to the Satellite Operator Specialist classification prior to their fifth (5th) year anniversary of Satellite Operator II classification.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed this **20**th **day of August 2023** by their duly authorized representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their names to be inscribed by their duly authorized officers and representatives.

FOR I.B.E.W. LOCAL 543

FOR INFINITY SYSTEMS ENGINEERING LLC
AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

Jerry M. Koger Business Manager

Brad Michelson

Frankie Newton

Program Manager

Infinity Systems Engineering LLC

Infinity Systems Engineering LLC

Director of Contracts

Zackary Quillin

Chief Steward, Point Mugu

Thomas Peppard

InDyne, Inc.

VP Space Systems Division

Chris Mackey

Integrity Communications Solutions, Inc.

VP

James Hadfield

Rome Research Corporation

Director of Contracts, Mission Systems